1960

# Milne Truck Lines et al v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Plaintiffs' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This case is before the Supreme Court on a Writ of  
Review directed to the defendants, and for the purpose

of reviewing an order of the Public Service Commission of Utah, dated April 28, 1960. Such order granted to defendant Clark Tank Lines, Inc., Certificate of Convenience and Necessity No. 1051-Sub 7, authorizing operating rights on certain specified commodities between all points and places in the State of Utah.

The approach of the Public Service Commission in this case is of particular concern to plaintiffs in that the statewide grant of authority is totally without support in the evidence and was made without reference to the well established concept of that degree of proof required to establish convenience and necessity. It is obvious that the Commission failed to make even a casual study of the evidence, preferring instead to make a blanket grant without regard to the testimony.

Clark Tank Lines was granted authority in accordance with its application to transport flour, sugar, edible salt and powdered milk in dry form, in bulk, between all points and places in the State of Utah and non-edible salt, in dry form, in bulk, from Saline to points and places in the state north of, but not including, Tooele, Salt Lake, Wasatch, Duchesne and Uintah counties. Plaintiffs are not contesting that portion of the order permitting service on non-edible salt from Saline to points north of the indicated counties.



The only evidence introduced by Clark related to transportation of (1) flour from Ogden to Salt Lake; (2) sugar from West Jordan to Salt Lake; (3) edible salt from Saltair to Salt Lake; and (4) powdered milk from Beaver to Salt Lake. Plaintiffs do not concede that any of this evidence would support a finding of convenience and necessity for any of these commodities to any of these points.

In this order the Public Service Commission completely abandoned the principle that there must be evidence of need for the proposed transportation service on the commodities named and into the territories involved. The evidence is inadequate to sustain any grant of authority. Moreover, there is not a scintilla of evidence to sustain the grant to all points and places within the state.

As hereinafter outlined, plaintiffs' authority extends generally from Salt Lake City south on U.S. Highways 89 and 91 into southern Utah, and east on U.S. Highways 6 and 50 into eastern Utah. However, the statewide grant of authority has a direct and adverse affect on plaintiffs' interlining operations as well as affecting plaintiffs in the areas they serve directly. Consequently, this appeal is directed to the entire order, except that portion authorizing transportation of non-edible salt from Saline to points in northern Utah.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Clark Tank Lines, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as defendant) filed an application January 25, 1960 seeking a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to operate as a common motor carrier for the transportation of flour, sugar, powdered milk and salt, in bulk, in dry form, between all points and places in the State of Utah. Notice of the application was given and hearing was held before the Public Service Commission April 8, 1960. A total of nine protestants filed appearances. (R. 1). At the hearing defendant amended its application limiting transportation of non-edible salt to the origin point of Saline. The Commission's Report and Order, issued April 28, 1960, granted defendant authority to operate as a common carrier for the transportation of flour, sugar, powdered milk and salt used or suitable for human consumption, in bulk, in dry form, between all points and places in the State of Utah, and on return movements to transport rejected shipments, and for the transportation of non-edible salt, in bulk, in dry form, from Saline to all points in Utah north of, but not including, Tooele, Salt Lake, Wasatch, Duchesne and Uintah Counties.

Defendant is a common carrier with operating rights in Utah for the bulk transportation of petroleum, petroleum products, anhydrous ammonia, ammonium nitrate, solid ammonium nitrate, ammonium sulfate, dry and



liquid fertilizers and magnesium chloride brine solution between various points and places within the state. (Ex. 1). In addition, defendant holds certain interstate operating rights, including authority to transport bulk flour and salt. (R. 27). Defendant presently has no equipment suitable for the transportation of edible commodities in bulk (R. 18) but has arranged for the construction of a trailer to enable it to operate its interstate authority. (R. 49, 50). It is this unit that defendant intends to use for the transportation of the commodities involved herein. (R. 37). Regardless of the disposition of this application, defendant will have to purchase this trailer to operate its interstate authority. (R. 49, 50).

As applicable here the authority of plaintiff Milne Truck Lines, Inc. under Certificates of Convenience and Necessity Nos. 465, 531 and 826, and various subs thereunder, authorizes transportation as a common carrier of general commodities, including the commodities involved herein, from Salt Lake City to Levan and all points south on U.S. Highway 91, and from Levan and all points south on U. S. Highway 91 to Salt Lake City. Local service is provided to all points between Levan and Santa Clara, inclusive. Additionally, Milne holds authority for general commodities over irregular routes to, from and between all points and places in Beaver County in conjunction with its authorized regular operations. Authority is also held for the transportation of general commodities between Beaver and Milford via Utah Highway 21, serv-

ing all intermediate points, together with authority to other points and places in the southern portion of the state. Milne is specifically authorized to transport salt products between Panguitch and Gunnison and all points in Washington County, except points on U.S. Highway 91 north of the junction of Utah Highway 15 and U.S. Highway 91. (Ex. 9).

Plaintiff Salt Lake-Kanab Freight Lines, Inc. is authorized under Certificate of Convenience and Necessity No. 1169 to transport as a common carrier general commodities, including the commodities involved herein, from Salt Lake City south on U.S. Highway 89 to Kanab, serving intermediate points. Additionally, this plaintiff serves intermediate points on U.S. Highway 91 between Salt Lake City and Nephi, inclusive, and on Utah Highways 11 and 28 between U.S. Highways 89 and 91 in central Utah. Salt Lake-Kanab has authority to serve from the Morton Salt Company plant at Saltair to points lying between Fairview and Marysville, inclusive, and Mona and Pigeon Hollow Junction, inclusive. (Ex. 14).

Plaintiff Carbon Motorway, Inc. holds authority under Certificate of Convenience and Necessity No. 1042 as a common carrier of general commodities, including the commodities involved herein, from Salt Lake City south on U.S. Highway 91 to Spanish Fork and southeasterly to the Emery County-Sevier County line over U.S. Highway 6 to Price, and Utah Highway 10 to the

County line, together with other indicated routes, serving all intermediate points. Within Emery County such carrier is authorized to serve all points and places within 20 miles of Utah Highway 10 together with other off-route points. Carbon holds authority to operate as a carrier of general commodities between Spanish Fork and Payson over U.S. Highway 91, serving all intermediate points. General commodity authority is held between Price and the Utah-Colorado state line, serving all intermediate points on U.S. Highways 6 and 50. Specific authority for the transportation of salt is held between the Morton Salt Company at Saltair and Salt Lake City over U.S. Highway 40. (Ex. 17).

Each of these plaintiffs maintain substantial terminal facilities at various points in the areas served and each has a large fleet of equipment. While none of plaintiffs possess a bulk unit similar to that described by defendant, their operating witnesses stated they were willing to acquire such additional equipment, singly or in association, as traffic may warrant. (R. 218, 219, 236, 245).

The defendant produced six shipper witnesses.

Mr. Lynn H. Denkers testified on behalf of the Pillsbury Company, which manufactures flour at Ogden. This witness testified that Salt Lake City and Ogden are the only communities in Utah to which bulk flour moves from

Pillsbury. (R. 60). Pillsbury ships bulk flour by truck from Ogden to one customer in Salt Lake City at the present time. (R. 62). One other Salt Lake customer, presently receiving his shipments of flour in bags, is contemplating converting to bulk facilities although the witness did not know when such conversion would occur. (R. 63, 66). Denkers indicated his company desired to ship flour to Pelton's Spudnuts in Salt Lake. (R. 76, 77). However, Pelton's is already equipped to handle bulk flour, and is served by rail from General Mills in Ogden. Pillsbury has had contract carrier service available for such a proposed movement to Pelton's. (R. 60, 180). There was no showing that the granting of this application would enable this shipper to supply bulk flour to Pelton's Spudnuts at Salt Lake City.

Pillsbury is presently being served on its bulk movements of flour by truck by a duly certified contract carrier, Salt Lake Flour Mills division of the Colorado Milling & Elevator Company, which uses equipment similar to that which the defendant proposes to acquire for this transportation. (R. 61). The equipment of this contract carrier is utilized by Pillsbury three days a week. (R. 61). Denkers testified that his company had encountered no difficulty with the services of the contract carrier. (R. 75). As to the adequacy of this service, he said:

“Q. Is it your testimony here that they do not have adequate equipment at the present time?

\* \* \*

A. It is adequate for the points we serve right now." (R. 81).

Denkers also stated:

"Q. But you do not need any additional service at this point?

A. Not unless this additional customer converts." (R. 71).

The witness admitted Pillsbury had never asked the contract carrier to acquire additional equipment and had no reason to believe any such request would be refused. (R. 81, 82).

Ninety-five percent of Pillsbury's flour is presently transported in bags. (R. 67). Denkers said that any bulk movements of flour to Utah points other than Salt Lake and Ogden are "strictly conjecture." (R. 68). On cross-examination, counsel inquired specifically into the needs of this shipper into the territories served by plaintiffs. It is obvious this shipper has absolutely no need for the proposed servied into these areas. Denkers testified:

"Q. Mr. Denkers, let me ask you, at the present time you are using Milne Truck Lines for bags into southern Utah?

A. We are, yes.

Q. And have you found this service satisfactory?

A. Yes.

Q. You never made any requests of them for bulk movement, have you?

A. No.

Q. And will you make the same statement as to Carbon Motorway in the area which they serve?

A. That's true; the same is true.

Q. And Salt Lake-Kanab?

A. Yes." (R. 77, 78)

No other evidence was adduced from Pillsbury with respect to transportation into these areas.

Morton Salt Company was represented by D. Leon Johnston. This company is located at Saltair, about ten miles west of the Salt Lake City airport. (R. 132). Morton owns and operates its own equipment and transports edible salt in both bulk and bags. (R. 136, 137). The fact that Morton has no need for any bulk service on edible salt was succinctly stated by Johnston when he said:

“Q. Do you have occasions where your own equipment is fully used for other purposes and you would have bulk shipments which you would have to give to other carriers?

A. Only in case of the coarse salt.” (R. 137).

Morton uses its own equipment insofar as possible and handles its own transportation from Payson on the south to Logan on the north, and Heber City on the east to Tooele on the west. (R. 139, 142). At this time Morton has contract carrier service available for excess traffic it cannot handle and calls on common carriers only infrequently, and such calls would continue to be unusual. (R. 142, 144). The largest request for a bulk shipment of edible salt that this shipper has ever had in Utah was an order for 15 tons which was handled with Morton’s own equipment. (R. 141). The witness was asked whether Morton would continue to use its own trucks in the transportation of edible salt in bulk and replied:

“A. That is correct, unless the requirements of the customer was such that we didn’t have the equipment to do it.

Q. Do you know of any requirements at the present time which make your equipment unsuited for the transportation in bulk of edible salt—I mean edible for human consumption?

A. No sir.



Q. Are you presently transporting that type of salt in bulk within your local area?

A. Yes.” (R. 142, 143).

With regard to the area south of Provo, the absolute lack of need by this shipper was clearly demonstrated when Johnston was asked:

“Q. Now so far as edible salt, in bulk, do I correctly interpret your testimony to mean that you have no known movement there, for instance, to points such as Provo—you have no user there?

A. That’s right.

Q. In fact, any place in Utah south of Provo you would have no occasion to move edible salt in bulk?

A. That is correct.” (R. 143).

This company has no market for edible salt in Uintah, Duchesne, Carbon, Wayne, Grand, Emery and San Juan Counties and no use for any trucking services into those areas. (R. 145, 146).

Theo M. Merrill appeared representing Brooklawn Creamery. This company manufactures powdered milk in Beaver and is presently shipping its product in bags

and fiber drums. (R. 121). The witness admitted that his company has no customers at the present time who utilize bulk facilities in the handling of powdered milk. (R. 126). His interest Merrill said:

“A. . . . is in satisfying any potential customers who may develop.” (R. 122).

This shipper is presently utilizing the facilities of plaintiff Milne Truck Lines from Beaver into Salt Lake City. Concerning this service he stated:

“Q. Are you here complaining about the service of Milne from Beaver to Salt Lake on these bag shipments to this particular customer?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. That service has been very satisfactory?

A. Very satisfactory.” (R. 125).

Merrill strictly limited the points with which his company is concerned, stating:

“Q. You have no need for services to any other points than Beaver and Salt Lake City?

A. No.” (R. 129).

The present movement on Milne Truck Lines of powdered milk from Beaver to Salt Lake City occurs approximately once a week. (R. 132).

The potential customer to which this shipper referred, Pelton's Spudnuts, uses about 12,000 to 13,000 pounds of powdered milk a month. (R. 184). On defendant's proposed 45,000 pound capacity equipment, this movement would amount to approximately one truck load every four months. On the other hand, this traffic constitutes a valuable backhaul for Milne Truck Lines (R. 219, 220) and would be lost to Milne whether in bulk or in bag, by the granting of this application. (R. 131). With respect to Brooklawn's need for bulk service, Merrill's testimony demonstrates that it has not previously anticipated such a need. He stated with respect to Milne's solicitation:

“Q. Their purpose in coming, as they have made clear I presume, is to see what traffic they can move for you; is that right?

A. That's right.

Q. Now nothing has ever been said by you or by them actually about transporting powdered milk in bulk equipment. The subject has never come up?

A. That's right.” (R. 132).

Utah-Idaho Sugar Company was represented by Mr. Clisbee Kimball. This company has manufacturing plants located in West Jordan and Garland. His testimony dealt with transportation to the Salt Lake plant of Pelton's Spudnuts.

Kimball admitted that no sugar in bulk is presently being shipped from either of Utah-Idaho Sugar Company's plants. (R. 149). All of its product is at present moving in bags and liquid form. (R. 149). He stated, however, that his company is presently "dickering" with one customer, Pelton's Spudnuts, for the sale of bulk sugar. (R. 150, 163). Kimball indicated that this customer had not yet decided whether the conversion of its facilities will be designed to accommodate truck or rail movement of bulk sugar. (R. 155). If the Spudnut people elect to convert to bulk sugar movement to be served by trucks, Utah-Idaho Sugar would supply sugar from West Jordan, relying on the Garland plant only in emergencies. (R. 164).

This company presently delivers sugar in bags from its West Jordan plant into the Salt Lake area and south into Provo via its own trucks. (R. 158, 159). In other areas, this shipper utilizes the services of plaintiffs into the territory served by them and finds such services satisfactory. (R. 165, 166, 168).

The fact that Utah-Idaho Sugar has absolutely no need for transportation of sugar in bulk into the area served by plaintiffs was clearly demonstrated by the witness. Regarding the territory served by plaintiff Milne Truck Lines, he said:

“A. We don’t have any potential users in the territory they operate in at the present time.

Q. That’s right. The same would be true of Salt Lake-Kanab Freight Lines—you are familiar with them?

A. Yes.

Q. You would have no even potential users there in the foreseeable time on bulk?

A. I wouldn’t say foreseeable, but presently, no—it might develop.

Q. That would be some later time, highly conjectural as to when?

A. It is conjecture.” (R. 165, 166).

Referring to plaintiff Carbon Motorway’s territory, he said:

“Q. Now with reference to Carbon, I suppose your statement as to servicing such points as Price—your statement—

A. Yes.

Q. That would probably be true, would it not, of any points served by Carbon Motorways, excluding for the moment Provo?

A. Yes.

Q. Now taking for the moment the point of Provo, which they serve, you can't give us anything concrete as to a potential user there?

A. No." (R. 167).

Although this shipper has been solicited by plaintiffs for the purpose of developing any freight plaintiffs could handle, it has never mentioned any need for a bulk transportation movement. (R. 170).

Mr. Lee Scott appeared for Pelton's Spudnuts, a Salt Lake confectionary firm. He indicated that his company was the prime mover in the filing of this application. (R. 187). Pelton's Spudnuts uses each of the commodities involved, flour in bulk, and sugar, salt and powdered milk in bags. He testified his company intends to convert its operation to bulk as soon as feasible. (R. 183).

After this conversion, Scott stated his company will utilize 40,000 to 60,000 pounds of bulk sugar a month. (R. 183). Pelton's is presently receiving sugar from

Layton Sugar Company in 3,000 pound nesta-bins. (R. 179). The witness stated that if his company purchased sugar from Utah-Idaho Sugar, the commodity would move from West Jordan to Salt Lake. (R. 183). No other points or places of origin or destination of this product were mentioned.

Pelton's is presently equipped to handle and is handling its flour in bulk. (R. 183). It receives this commodity at its plant via rail from General Mills in Ogden. (R. 180). Any need for the transportation of flour was specifically negated by this witness. He stated in response to a question whether he would need bulk shipments of flour coming by truck:

“A. Not the flour. The situation on the flour is very compatible as our present operation is.” (R. 193).

Scott said there was a possibility that Pelton's might ship one truckload of bulk flour per month. (R. 193). However, contract carrier service is available for any such bulk transportation by truck. (R. 60). With regard to the movement of flour, the only points in the state even referred to were Salt Lake and Ogden.

Pelton's uses 12,000 to 13,000 pounds of powdered milk per month which it is now receiving in 100 pound bags from Beaver via Milne Truck Lines. (R. 184). On



defendant's proposed 45,000 pound capacity truck this traffic would amount to about one truck load every four months. Milne's service has been found to be satisfactory on this movement. (R. 203). Scott admitted that Pelton's had been solicited by Milne Truck Lines but no mention had ever been made of a need for bulk transportation of powdered milk. (R. 203). The Beaver to Salt Lake movement was the only movement of powdered milk about which evidence was produced.

Edible salt is presently received by Pelton's from Morton Salt Company in bags via the Morton trucks. (R. 180). While Morton has bulk equipment for the transportation of edible salt and uses it regularly (R. 136, 137), the witness did not know such service was available. (R. 201). This shipper's need, if any, for transportation of edible salt in bulk can be handled by Morton without the issuance of any new authority. Again, no evidence was introduced regarding a movement of edible salt to any points other than Salt Lake from Saltair.

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