1960

Milne Truck Lines et al v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Defendant Clark Tank Lines Co.

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FINDING OF THE COMMISSION THAT PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY WOULD BE BEST SERVED BY GRANTING THIS CERTIFICATE IS ABUNDANTLY SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE.

Development of the argument under Point I will not be for the purpose of convincing this Court that a certificate of convenience and necessity should be issued to Clark. Rather, it is proposed to here cite the evidentiary facts which *support* the findings made by the Public Service Commission. It is axiomatic that these findings will not be upset by this Court if they are supported by the evidence. Legal propositions and citation of authority will be developed in Point II of the Argument.

(A) THE NEED FOR BULK CARRIAGE AUTHORITY IS CLEARLY ESTABLISHED BY SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE.

Throughout their brief, plaintiffs attempt to separate Clark's application for limited edible bulk authority into individual commodity groups. The application is not, however, one for bulk flour authority; nor is it for powdered milk authority or sugar or salt authority. Clark is responding to the need for bulk transportation of all the principal commercial edible commodities, and in applying for such authority has simply designated the specific edibles involved.

(The non-edible phase of the application has escaped comment by plaintiffs, and it must be assumed that no objection

is made to this point of the permanent authority which was granted.)

With regard to the newly established carriage authority, the evidence of present need must be taken as a whole. The Commission may properly grant a motor carrier a certificate to transport commodities requiring special equipment on a representative showing, despite the fact that the carrier does not show a need for service to each point in the state, where the evidence discloses a general need for that type of hauling. Legal authority will be cited later.

Let us look at the findings made by the Commission pertaining to need for the new carrier authority, and the evidence upon which these findings were based.

(1) In its Report and Order, the Commission found that:

"Pelton's Spudnut, Inc., operates a plant in Salt Lake City at which it manufactures sputnut and other confection mixes. These mixes are shipped from Salt Lake City to company outlets all over the United States. It uses large quantities of flour of various types, sugar, powdered milk salt and shortening for its mixes. For a number of years this company has been in the process of converting its plant operations to provide for automatic feeding of ingredients into its mixing process. It has been unable to accomplish automation as fully as desired for the reason that it has not had available bulk transportation of all ingredients in quantities to fit its requirements. The handling of ingredients in bags or drums in addition to being inefficient and costly has the further disadvantage of permitting for-

eign matter to get into the bins, in spite of all precautions.

"Pelton's Spudnut, Inc., now uses from 45,000 to 60,000 lbs. of sugar per month, which it received from Layton Sugar Company in Nesta Bins delivered by the sugar company on its own flat rack trucks. Spudnut, Inc., uses about 100,000 lbs. of one type flour per week, from 120,000 to 130,000 lbs. of another type flour and is experimenting with still another type flour of which it would use approximately 25,000 lbs. per week. The flour is now shipped from Ogden by the Union Pacific Railroad Company, which service is satisfactory, except that on occasions shipments in less than carload quantities are desirable. Spudnut is now upping 10,000 to 15,000 lbs. of powdered milk per month, which it purchases from Brooklawn Creamery at its plant in Beaver, Utah. There is no rail service available at Beaver and the powdered milk is now transported in packages or drums by Milne Truck Lines, Inc. Pelton now uses from 10,000 to 11,000 lbs. of edible salt which it procures from Morton Salt Company and which is delivered in bags by the salt company on its own trucks. Pelton procures its shortening in bulk by rail from outside the State of Utah. The representative of Pelton's contends that much of the company's expenditure for automation is wasted unless it can procure satisfactory bulk transportation of all its principal ingredients."

That these findings were based on evidence was clear. Pelton's Salt Lake City plant manufactures spudnut and other confection mixes (R. 178-179) for shipment throughout the

United States, Alaska, Canada and Hawaii (R. 191). The company uses quantities of flour, sugar, powdered milk, salt and shortening for its mixes (R. 184, 179, 183). When asked why the company contemplated converting to bulk receiving of the various commodities involved, Pelton's representative testified fully and in detail as to every phase of its operational need for bulk (R. 181-183).

As to bulk transportation facilities, the witness stated that he knew of no carrier presently available to transport the commodities involved (R. 186-187).

Pelton will need from 40,000 to 60,000 pounds of sugar per month (R. 183). Sugar is now received from the Layton Sugar Company in 3,000 lb. nesta-bins (R. 179). Pelton now uses about 100,000 lbs. of hard wheat flour per week, about 120,000 to 150,000 lbs. of soft wheat flour per month, and smaller quantities of other types of flour (R. 184). The company will also need from 40,000 to 50,000 lbs. of a different type of flour per month for a new product which they are going into (R. 193). The flour is now being shipped from Ogden by the Union Pacific Railroad Company (R. 189), which service is now satisfactory except for shipments of less than carload quantities (R. 193). Pelton is now using about 12,000 to 13,000 lbs. of powdered milk per month, which is received from the Brooklawn Creamery in Beaver (R. 184). There is no rail service available from Beaver (R. 194), and is now transported in packages or drums by Milne Truck Lines, Inc. (R. 180, 203). Edible salt requirements are from 10,000 to 15,000 lbs. per month, which is procured from Morton Salt Company and delivered in bags by the salt company on its

own trucks (R. 185, 180). Concerning Pelton's conversion to bulk receiving and the need for suitable bulk transportation facilities, the company representative testified:

"Q. What will happen, Mr. Scott, if this application is not granted?

A. I will be sitting with an \$8,000.00 investment, I guess.

Q. Is there any other carrier that you know of that has the type of equipment necessary to transport these commodities?

A. No, sir." (R. 186-187).

(2) As to the need for new common carrier authority to haul powdered milk products, the Commission made the following finding:

"A representative of Brooklawn Creamery testified that unless it is able to obtain carrier service for movement of powdered milk in bulk, the company will lose business." (R. & O. 7).

This finding is well supported by the testimony of the representative from Brooklawn Creamery in reference with a Salt Lake City customer:

"Q. And will you tell me, sir, has he requested in the future at some given time shipments of powdered milk in bulk whereas up to now you have been shipping by bags and drums?

* * *

A. He has indicated that he is going into that type of business and if we want to keep his account we would have to accommodate our facilities to correspond with his." (R. 123).

(3) The Commission's findings with regard to need for dry bulk transportation facilities for edible salt were:

"A witness from Morton Salt Company testified that it has orders for edible sale in bulk from meat packers, bakeries and Spudnut, Inc. The edible salt moving in bulk from the salt company's plant west of Salt Lake City to Swift and Company in Ogden, moves by rail, but Swift and Company on occasion desires less than box car quantities and other customers who do not have rail service available or who do not use salt in box car quantities are desirous of receiving salt in bulk. Morton Salt Company operates its own equipment for package deliveries as far north as Logan, Utah, and as far south as Payson, Utah. The company's own trucks are not suitable for bulk movement of edible salt, although they have on occasion been used for that purpose by force of circumstances."
(R & O 7).

The evidence well supports there findings. The company ships bulk salt in edible form to meat packers, bakeries, creameries (R. 136) and "food people," such as Pelton's Spudnuts (R. 138). The Morton plant at Saltair Junction, which is about ten miles west of Salt Lake City (R. 135) ships about 3,000 to 4,000 tons of edible sale annually to points within the State of Utah. About 20% of this is shipped in bulk (R. 136). Concerning these movements, the company representative testified:

"Q. You indicated that most of the customers that you will have for bulk shipments are in the Salt Lake-Ogden-Provo area.

A. That's right.

Q. And I assume that most of those customers are served by rail?

A. No, I don't think so. I think there is a large number of them I think in this city that are not.

Q. That are not on rail?

A. That's right." (R. 146-147).

The witness further stated that of their present intrastate customers for edible salt in bulk, only Swift & Company, in Ogden, would be able to take rail shipments in carload quantities (R. 147). The company operates its own equipment within an area bordered by Payson and Logan on the north and south, and Heber City and Tooele on the east and west (R. 142). Regarding the use of their own equipment for bulk movements of edible salt the witness stated that the company's van type vehicles are now used (R. 137), but further testified:

"Q. Have you heard described the type of equipment that Clark Tank Lines proposes to purchase?

A. Yes.

Q. The stainless steel? Would the availability of such equipment for movement to food places like Pelton's Spudnut be of any advantage to your company?

A. Yes.

Q. Why, sir?

A. Because there would probably be rules and regulations there, or regulations on the part of that company or food laws, and so forth, that would require a stainless steel type truck, which we do not have.

* * *

Q. Do you know any other carrier available to you that has that type of equipment?

A. No, sir.” (R. 138).

(4) As to the need for bulk transportation facilities for sugar, the findings of the Commission were:

“A representtaive of Utah-Idaho Sugar Company testified that his company has two sugar plants in Utah, equipped to ship sugar in dry bulk, one at West Jordan served by the Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company and Magna-Garfield Truck Line; and one at Garland, Utah, served by the Union Pacific Railroad Company and Consolidated Freightways Corp. of Delaware. Two other sugar plants operated in Utah, one by Layton Sugar Company at Layton, Utah, and one by Amalgamated Sugar Company in Lewiston, Utah, are equipped to ship sugar in dry bulk form. None of these sugar plants now has available motor carrier service for shipment of sugar in bulk in dry form. Sugar is shipped in liquid form in tank trucks. The Union Pacific Railroad Company furnishes good transportation service on the movement of bulk sugar and the Utah-Idaho Sugar Company has for some time made requests of The Denver & Rio Grane Western Railroad Company to provide air slide equipped cars for dry bulk sugar movements. Utah-Idaho Sugar Company delivers bag sugar in its own trucks in the Salt Lake and Utah County area. Before the sugar companies can freely solicit dry bulk sugar sales it is necessary that motor carrier service be available. Numerous customers have inquired respecting dry bulk delivery of sugar, but are unwilling to equip for bulk

delivery until truck transportation service is available.”
(R & O 7-8).

These findings were well supported by the evidence. Bulk sugar produced by Utah-Idaho Sugar Company originates in West Jordan and Garland (R. 148). West Jordan is served by the Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company and Garland is served by the Union Pacific Railroad Company (R. 152, 169). Two other sugar plants are located in Utah, the Layton Sugar Company at Layton, and the Amalgamated Sugar Company located at Lewiston (R. 179, 159). The witness testified that he did not know of any motor carrier available at the present time with equipment required for the transportation of dry bulk sugar (R. 151), although some shipments are now made in liquid bulk (R. 149). The company now uses Union Pacific Railroad Company cars equipped with air slide units in dry bulk sugar movements from the Garland plant (R. 169. Regarding rail service from the West Jordan plant, however, the witness testified:

“A. It isn't available from West Jordan because the D. & R. G. does not provide bulk air slide equipment and we cannot bring Union Pacific cars down from Garland to West Jordan to operate exclusively on the D. & R. G. W.

Q. *Have you requested the D. & R. G. W. to supply that type of equipment?*

A. *We have been after them for five years to get some of that type of equipment.*

Q. *Have they done it?*

A. No.” (R. 152-153). (Emphasis added).

The Utah-Idaho Sugar Company delivers bagged sugar

by their own trucks in the Salt Lake area (R. 158). It is not, however, equipped to handle movements in bulk (R. 158), and before the company can freely solicit dry bulk sugar sales, it is necessary that such motor carrier service be available (R. 150). In this connection, the Utah-Idaho Sugar Company representative testified:

“Q. Can you solicit bulk sugar sales in Utah at the present time?

A. No, because we have no facilities for delivering bulk sugar.

Q. To what type of customers would you desire to solicit in the sale of bulk sugars?

A. Bakers, confectioners, freezers and packers.

Q. Can you tell me, are they located in various parts of Utah?

A. Well, principally in the Salt Lake area, but they could be located in other areas, of course.” (R. 150).

The witness further testified that if proper facilities were available, the company’s bulk sugar sales would absolutely be increased (R. 150-151). This witness further indicated that if the facilities were available, the company had customers large enough for bulk movements in Murray, Provo, Ogden, Brigham City and possibly Logan (R. 152).

(5) Concerning the need for flour transportation facilities in dry bulk, the Commission found that:

“Pillsbury Flour Company now ships flour in bulk from its plant in Ogden by contract motor carrier. This flour company does not use rail service for transpor-

tation of flour in bulk in Utah because of customer location. It does ship approximately 80,000 lbs. of bulk flour per week at the present time, and has another customer ready to change to bulk use when motor carrier service is available. Salt Lake Flour Mills, a Division of Colorado Milling and Elevator Company, is the contract motor carrier used by Pillsbury for bulk transportation of flour. This contract carrier transports its own flour in bulk and also performs bulk transportation of flour for General Mills, Inc., between all points and places in Salt Lake, Davis, and Weber Counties, Utah. This contract carrier service has been satisfactory except that the three flour companies are competitive in the Utah area, and their association together in the use of the truck equipment of Salt Lake Flour Mills Division of Colorado Milling and Elevator Company for the transportation of flour in bulk, handicaps each of the three flour companies in soliciting business. This contract carrier arrangement arose from the fact that no common motor carrier service is available for the transportation of flour in bulk." (R & O 8-9).

The evidence supporting these findings are as follows: the Pillsbury plant in Ogden presently makes intrastate flour shipments in dry bulk to Ogden and to Salt Lake City (R. 59-60). The company now ships approximately 80,000 pounds of bulk flour per week to a Salt Lake City customer (R. 65). Another Salt Lake City customer is presently receiving an estimated 1,000 bags per week and it is contemplated that this customer will convert to bulk. (Flour bags generally weigh 100 lbs) (R. 65). *In addition to these two customers,*

Pillsbury would like to ship flour in bulk to Pelton's Spudnuts in Salt Lake City, and considers Pelton a potential customer (R. 76-77). The only suitable trucking equipment presently available to Pillsbury is owned by their business competitor, Salt Lake Flour Mills (R. 59, 62). This company has its own piece of equipment and in addition to transporting flour from Pillsbury, the carrier transports its own flour in bulk and also performs bulk transportation of flour for General Mills, Inc. (R. 62, 73). Although Pillsbury now uses rail service for out of state bulk flour shipments, the company cannot use the railroads for shipments since none of its customers are located on rail sidings (R. 69-70). When asked whether there would be any advantage in using Clark over Salt Lake Flour Mills, their competitor, the witness testified:

"A. Well, I would say there might be, inasmuch as our present carrier is a competitor of ours. It might involve—at the present time we can't go out and solicit their customers, or we don't go out and solicit their customers, put it that way.

Q. Are you restricted on that basis?

A. Yes sir." (R. 68).

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